CITY OF LEAVENWORTH
PLANNING COMMISSION
COMMISSION CHAMBERS, CITY HALL
100 N. 5" Street
Leavenworth, KS 66048

REGULAR SESSION
Monday, January 7, 2019
6:00 p.m.

CALL TO ORDER:
1. Roll Call/Establish Quorum

2. Approval of Minutes: December 3, 2018

OLD BUSINESS:

1. 2018-11 REZ - 600 SHAWNEE STREET AND 621 SENECA STREET

Conduct a public hearing for Case No. 2018-11 REZ — 600 Shawnee Street and 621 Seneca
Street. The property, owned by Exact Loft and Gym, LLC, is commonly known as former
Immaculata High School building and adjacent vacant lot. The building was constructed in
1922 and was listed on the National Register of Historic Places as part of the Leavenworth
Downtown Historic District in 2002. The Planning Commission reviewed this project at the
October 1, 2018 Planning Commission meeting and requested that the applicant add
parking on the vacant lot at 621 Seneca Street to alleviate parking concerns with other
nearby uses. That parking has been added.

NEW BUSINESS:

1. ELECTION OF OFFICERS

2. REVISION TO BYLAWS - ARTICLE 1 — MEMBERS, #2

OTHER BUSINESS:
NONE

ADJOURN




CITY OF LEAVENWORTH PLANNING COMMISSION

COMMISSION CHAMBERS, CITY HALL
100 N 5% Street, Leavenworth, Kansas 66048

REGULAR SESSION
Monday, December 3, 2018
6:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER:
Commiissioners Present Commissioners Absent
Jay Byrne Sherry Hines Whitson
Mike Burke John Karrasch
Claude Wiedower
Linda Bohnsack
Camalla Leonhard City Staff Present
Julie Hurley

Michelle Baragary
Chairman Byrne called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and noted a quorum was present.

Approval of Minutes: October 1, 2018
Chairman Byrne asked for comments or a motion on the minutes presented for approval: October 1, 2018. Ms.

Leonhard moved to accept the minutes as presented, seconded by Mr. Wiedower. The minutes were approved by
a vote of 5-0.

OLD BUSINESS:
None
NEW BUSINESS:

1. 2018-18 SUP-2400S. 15™ STREET

Conduct a public hearing for Case No. 2018-18 SUP — 2400 S. 15 Street. The applicant is requesting a
Special Use Permit to allow a solar energy collection system with over 500 square feet of collection
surface.

Chairman Byrne called for the staff report.

City Planner Julie Hurley stated Teddy Matlock, the owner of the home located at 2400 S. 15 Street, is
requesting a Special Use Permit to allow a solar energy collection system with over 500 square feet of
collection surface. Section 10.01 of the Development Regulations requires a Special use Permit for any solar
energy system with over 500 square feet of collection surface.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 1 December 3, 2018



The solar panels are proposed to be installed on the east and south faces of the roof, and include
approximately 598 sqft of solar collection surface area. The existing structure is a single-family home.

COMMISSION FINDINGS

The Commission may recommend issuance of a special use permit whenever it finds that:

1. The proposed special use complies with all applicable provisions of this ordinance.

Staff believes that this application complies with all provisions of the City of Leavenworth
Development Regulations.

The proposed special use at the specified location will contribute to and promote the economic
development, welfare or convenience of the public.

A solar collection system will provide numerous economic and environmental benefits to both the
homeowner and community as a whole.

The special use will not cause substantial injury to the value of other property in the neighborhood
in which it is located.

Staff does not believe that the proposed solar energy collection system will cause substantial injury
to the value of other property in the neighborhood.

The location and size of the special use, the nature and intensity of the operation involved in or
conducted in connection with it, and the location of the site with respect to streets giving access to
it are such that the special use will not dominate the immediate neighborhood so as to prevent
development and use of neighboring property in accordance with the applicable zoning district
regulations.

The proposed solar energy collection system will be located such that it is an integral part of the
existing home, and will not interfere with development and use of any neighboring property.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval of the Special Use Permit request based on the analysis and findings included

herein.

ACTION/OPTIONS:

Motion, based upon findings as stated to recommend approval to the City Commission
Motion, to recommend denial to the City Commission
Table the issue for additional information/consideration

Chairman Byrne asked for questions from the commissioners about the staff report.

Mr. Byrne asked if there has been a special use permit for this use in the past.

Ms. Hurley stated the only application that has come through was for St. Mary’s University, which was not
for a residential solar installation. All other residential solar installations have been under 500 sqft.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 2 December 3, 2018



Chairman Byrne opened the public hearing. With no one wishing to speak for or against the request,
Chairman Byrne closed the public hearing and opened it for discussion among the commissioners.

Mr. Wiedower stated he has a friend who is a retired engineer who installed solar panels on a residential
home. He stated it is environmental friendly, energy efficient, and does not negatively impact neighboring
properties.

Ms. Bohnsack asked if the panels will be flush with the roof and not standing up.

Teddy Matlock, property owner of 2400 S. 15" Street, stated the panels will be flush with the roof. With the
way the house is positioned, panels will be installed on the front of the house and east side.

With no further discussion, Chairman Byrne called for a motion. Ms. Bohnsack moved to approve the
Special Use Permit to allow 598 sqft of solar collection surface area based upon the staff report and the
findings, seconded by Ms. Leonhard and approved by a vote of 5-0.

2. ANNUAL REVIEW OF DEVELOPMENT REGULATIONS — PROPOSED TEXT AMENDMENTS

The Development Regulations were adopted by the City Commission in June, 2016 after a year-long
comprehensive update process. Through the daily use of the Regulations by staff, several minor
items have arisen that may necessitate possible updating. This process is not uncommon, and it is
anticipated that an annual review of the Development Regulations will be performed in order to
ensure that they remain up to date and comprehensive. The following sections have been identified
for update.

City Planner Julie Hurley stated this is a preliminary discussion of the items within the Development
Regulations that have been identified for potential revision. No action or motion is needed in tonight’s
meeting. Moving forward, staff will get revisions written up for the commissioners to take action on at the
next meeting.

e Section 3.02 Applicability and Exemptions; Subsection B.1
Language should read “The division of land into parcels or tracts of NOT more than five acres and
not involving any new streets or easements of access and not affecting major streets.”

e Article 4; Zoning Districts and Standards
Discuss adding provision for secondary living quarters in existing Carriage Houses in residential
areas.

e Section 4.04 Use Standards; Subsection B.3.a
Variances in size for detached garages should be approved through Board of Zoning Appeals
process, not Special Use Permit process.

e Article 8; Signs
Add penalty for installing signage without first obtaining permit. Suggested penalty of $100 per day.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 3 December 3, 2018



e Section 8.04 Permits; Subsection C
Add “decorative light pole banners” as a type of sign excluded from permit.

e Article 8.08; Signs Permitted in All Residential Districts
Add size standards for neighborhood identification monument signs in residential areas.

e Section 10.01 Solar Energy
Discuss changing requirement of Special Use Permit to install solar energy system with over 500 sqft
of collection surface.

e Article 12; Definitions
Add definition for “Indoor Commercial Recreation”

e Appendix A; Use Table
General review of entire use table. Specific issues identified:

-Discuss appropriate zoning districts for “Live/work dwellings”, potentially include commercial areas

-Add use type, parking requirement and associated definition for “Event Venue”

- “Private Solar Collection Systems” should be permitted in all districts

-Provision for approval of “Commercial Solar collection Systems” in additional districts

-Provision for approval of “Commercial Wind Energy Systems” in additional districts

-Move “Athletic Facilities” from Commercial Services subsection to Recreation and Entertainment,
Outdoor subsection.

ACTION/OPTIONS:

No formal action required at this time. Upon conclusion of discussion by Planning Commission, a public
hearing will be set for the proposed text amendments at the next regularly scheduled Planning Commission
meeting, as provided for in section 2.01 of the Development Regulations.

Mr. Byrne asked if it would be acceptable to forward to staff any other suggested changes the
commissioners may have.

Ms. Hurley responded in the affirmative.

With no further business the meeting was adjourned at 6:40 p.m.

JH/mb

Leavenworth Planning Commission 4 December 3, 2018



L__portionofthe building. _  py o LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA ITEM
2018-11-REZ
600 Shawnee & 621 Seneca

JANUARY 7, 2019

SUBJECT:
A request to rezone the property located 600 Shawnee Street and 621 Seneca Street from CBD, Central Business
District, and R1-6, High Density Single Family Residential District, to RMX, Residential Mixed Use District

N [ ———— )
Rediewed By:
i’ Hurlgy Paul Kramer
Planner City Manager

ANALYSIS:

The applicant is requesting a rezoning of their property located at 600 Shawnee and 621 Seneca from CBD to
RMX. The property, owned by Exact Loft and Gym, LLC, is commonly known as former Immaculata High School
building and adjacent vacant lot. The building was constructed in 1922 and was listed on the National Register
of Historic Places as part of the Leavenworth Downtown Historic District in 2002. The Planning Commission
reviewed this project at the October 1, 2018 Planning Commission meeting and requested that the applicant
add parking on the vacant lot at 621 Seneca Street to alleviate parking concerns with other nearby uses. That
parking has been added.

The structure is a two-story, symmetrically massed, red brick building on a sloping lot with the foundation level
fully exposed on the southern elevation. The RMX zoning district is intended to provide for high-density, multi-
family residential dwellings along with a mix of appropriate neighborhood-serving uses. Commercial uses may
be included in some structures, but there is no requirement for each structure to have non-residential uses
included.

This location is a part of the Redevelopment Overlay District, whose purpose is to facilitate the development of
property in the downtown and northeast Leavenworth in accordance with the 2010 Downtown-North
Leavenworth Redevelopment Master Plan. In particular, this location is identified as part of the Downtown
Core. The intent of the subarea is to define Leavenworth’s traditional and historic downtown core, with a
diverse mix of retail, office and residential uses. The downtown core should embrace redevelopment activities
that promote diverse uses and activities that complement the established scale and urban form of the historic
downtown. New activities should promote preservation, renovation and adaptive reuse of historic structures.

The rezoning is being requested in order to repurpose the school building portion of the property into a total of
38 apartment units (37 1-bedroom units and 1 2-bedroom unit), with the gymnasium portion of the property to
be used as commercial space for a gym/group fitness operation and juice bar, along with other dividable
commercial space. The proposed uses are all allowable within the existing CBD zoning district, however,
residential uses are prohibited within the front half or front 30 feet of space, whichever is greater, on the first
floor. The applicant intends to provide residential units on the entirety of the first floor of the former school




Total required parking for the project is 108 spaces based on the following breakdown:
1 2-bedroom unit: 2 spaces

37 1-bedroom units: 37 spaces

4,797 sqft commercial space: 16 spaces

12,886 sqft gym/recreation: 51 spaces

302 sqft food service: 2 spaces

There are a total of 47 spaces provided on-site, with an additional 35 on-street parking spaces adjacent to the
project along Shawnee Street and North 6 Street, and 34 spaces in the adjacent city-owned public parking lot,
for a total of 116 spaces. There are 6 other city-owned public parking lots within a 2-block radius, with
numerous on-street parking opportunities. The Development Regulations allow several provisions for a
reduction in the number of required on-site parking spaces, including for properties in mixed-use districts and
registered historic properties. The CBD zoning district has no minimum parking requirement for any use type
allowed within the district, as on-street parking opportunities and city-owned public parking lots are intended
to satisfy any parking needs.

This project also requires review by the Leavenworth Preservation Commission (LPC), as the structure is listed
on the National Register of Historic Places. The Leavenworth Preservation Commission considered the request
on August 1, 2018 and voted 5-0 to approve the request for a Major Certificate of Appropriateness for the
project.

The Development Review Committee reviewed the application at their July 26, 2018 meeting. The main area of
discussion focused on required parking. There was some concern about use of the adjacent city-owned public
parking lot, as the lot is typically heavily used by members of the First Christian Church on Sundays. There was
no concern that the proposed uses would result in a higher volume of traffic than the former high school use
located on the property.

CONDITIONS OF DETERMINATION

Whenever the Planning Commission or City Commission takes action on an application for amendment to these
Development Regulations, and such proposed amendment is not a general revision of existing ordinances, but
one which will affect specific property, the Planning Commission and City Commission shall consider the
following factors:

a) The character of the neighborhood;

The subject property is part of Downtown Leavenworth and the Redevelopment Overlay District, with a variety
of uses and building forms. Historic structures such as this are common in the area.

b) The zoning and use of properties nearby;

The properties to the east, south and west are zoned CBD, Central Business District, and the properties to the
north are zoned R1-6, High Density Single Family Residential District.

c) The suitability of the subject property for the uses to which it has been restricted;
The subject property is currently zoned CBD, which allows a variety of uses by-right.

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




d) The extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby property;

The proposed rezoning should have little to no detrimental effect on nearby property. There is a mix of uses
present in the Downtown area, including multi-family. Staff does not anticipate that the volume of traffic
generated by the proposed uses will be significantly higher than previously generated by the high school use.

e) The length of time the subject property has remained vacant as zoned;
The structure has been unoccupied since June, 2017.

f) The relative gain to economic development, public health, safety and welfare by the reduction of the value
of the landowner's property as compared to the hardship imposed by such reduction upon the individual
landowner;

The proposed rezoning will have a positive effect upon the economic vitality of Downtown Leavenworth in
terms of bringing more residents to the area which will potentially increase the patronage of local
businesses, as well as expanded commercial offerings offering an expanded tax base.

g) The recommendations of permanent or professional staff;
Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request.

h) The conformance of the requested change to the adopted or recognized Comprehensive Land Use Plan
being utilized by the city;

The subject area is identified as appropriate for commercial uses in the Comprehensive Plan. However, the
majority of the Downtown area is identified as commercial on the Future Land Use Map, and there exists
already a mix of residential uses in this area. Additionally, this area is part of the Downtown-North
Leavenworth Redevelopment Area Master Plan, which promotes the area as appropriate for a mix of uses,
including residential. Therefore, staff finds the proposed request is not in conflict with the Comprehensive
Plan

i) Such other factors as may be relevant to a particular proposed amendment. The factors considered in
taking action on any proposed amendment shall be included in the minutes or otherwise be made part of
the written record.

This proposal makes possible the adaptive re-use of a previously vacant historically significant structure.

REZONING ACTION/OPTIONS:

e Recommend approval of the rezoning request from CBD to RMX to the City Commission
e Recommend denial of the rezoning request from CBD to RMX to the City Commission
e Table the issue for additional information/consideration.

Attachments:

Application materials

Location map

Minutes of October 1, 2018 Planning Commission meeting

DRC minutes

Excerpt: Downtown-North Leavenworth Redevelopment Area Master Plan

CITY of LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS




- 2018-11REZ

215 172215
. LA
=213

e

203
201
;502 ART Dn-ﬂ

J16ARTE

5:}0{ 526}.'—'
e -

9/27/2018, 8:36:33 AM

City of LV GIS, 2017, LV GIS Dept 09/23/2016, City of LV GIS, Dave Griffith,
2013

City of Leavenworth
2018




-
OFFICE USE ONLY
- Project No._Z G\ ~\\ REZ
_; Application # Q\as8
YTEAVENWORTH - Fee (non-refundable) $350.00
o= s Filing Date
APPLICATION FOR REZONING 9 G-\2-\R
CITY OF LEAVENWORTH, KANSAS Receipted By DN\ sen
Hearing Date 2 \a-\%
Publication Date N2 -\

The undersigned owner(s)/agent for the owner(s) of the property described below, herein petition for a change in
the zone of the following legally described property: (agent must have authorization to make application).

Subject Property: | 600 Shawnee Street and 621 Seneca Street

Rezoning: Present classification of CBD and R1-6 district to R-MX

Legal Description: | (Attach full legal description provided by the REGISTER OF DEEDS OFFICE or a TITLE COMPANY)

Real Estate PID # |0772503310003000 & 0772503310004000

Historic District: Leavenworth Downtown Historic District

[Me, __ILkN SALzREe (. being duly sworn, depose and say that | am the owner/agent for the
owner of the property involved in this petition and that the statements and answers herein contained and then
information herewith submitted are in all respects true and correct to the best of my knowledge and belief.

Name(s) of Owner (print o type): llan Salzberg, Managing Member - Exact Loft and Gym, LLC
Address: | 3829 Main Street #007, Kansas City, MO 64111

Signature of Owner(s):

Email Address: Office@exactarchitects.com

wrrmjssiag . =
) B8 =
State of _M(SSOU A P Jacked8? mE

P, 4,County
County of JAC S oN

S oy SN
Y, VE S

PN
On Expires®

- s 7] =
Signed or attested beforemeon |G | | . [2L01% by 'AT\(\L&,L [V -&LJ‘ kP ACLO) QQN}_LV‘
(date) (name(s) of person(s) T. /

Notary Public: 12 17 ARBY e i itiekaat PNy appointment expires: S [ 2\ /2 @2 2_
v Nl -~
NOTE: All signatures must be in ink. Signaturekof m?nge&js) must be secured and notarized.

Rezoning Application October 2017



REZONING REQUEST

OWNER:
Exact Lofts and Gym, LLC
3829 Main St. #007, Kansas City, MO 64111

REQUEST:
Rezone current CBD and R1-6 parcels to R-MX for conversion of
original school building to new apartments and commercial space.

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: TS

PID# 0772503310003000 - 621 SENECA ST.: LTS 22-25 &

W10'LT26, SECTION 25, BLOCK 76, TOWNSHIP 8, RANGE 22E,
LEAVENWORTH PLAT, ORIG. 5
PID# 0772503310004000 - 600 SHAWNEE ST.: LTS 1-12, = L'S\W'W
SECTION 25, BLOCK 76, TOWNSHIP 8, LEAVENWORTH PLAT,
ORIG.




00-SV

e |0
Wd 6295 10292/04

9
i
i

8Y099 SYSNYY 'HLHOMNIAVI
13341S 33NMYHS 009

VLY INOVININI

NOILONYLSNOD HO4 LON

|
|
i
i

wnen | wary owen

SLOILIHOYY 1oVXa

UV HLHCANIAYE ¥ SHENAOL B XX 52

L 30N ¥ SUSNAMOL T XO0TS W NOUDTS TAT0IM

5
T whg o




G089 SYSNVH HIHOMNIAYIT

13341S F3INMYHS 008

V1IVINOVIANNI

NOILONYLSNOD 404 LON

NOD SL1D31HOUY LIV MM

3

sazzsas (9in)

OSSN ALL) SYSNV

3]
-
WV
‘D
0
i L
b= |
‘m
ol
w

D i i i

o

dVIW ALINIDIA

Gvnaes s
ST Doy SUOUSH WO vy
ST IO MO - SHOUYATT HOWIDG 19w
UV OG0

DN ILIILR WINOLTE v
Mo DWMED QLITTR VOO 43dd ROV
L%0 ACCROHE R0 MYWCIDETRE (0T

EAYW W00 Gab L T IOCHOMLE YA T
YO0 15 OO DMIEYE 1y
OMLDINE VRN T €0

W DT B
BSOS 13D

SOUTHACIE WIWOHT 1O
SNUTREOIS IO GOY
SaliamrEraniioady  wvr

SNFATEOR YIS oy
SRAALNCUYML B AN 0OF

SEVIOOTNLIA 1L W N s

¥vide

BORE MCLOFE T O FIRIND TN M DN
TR S M NS Tad 110 T L7

‘S3LON ONIZY1D ALILYS

O ONY IS §v JRNDL' By S v T Cher 1. S T

ST Se

3000 34 GV WIS S 0oy CHDATH 0 TR EFRADC 1010 B

8 kg ] > o
A iseved
or oo AN | g
micwn, weaey ()
e
wat
onMmENGY o e
0173437 207 Qv T0AS @ i
WD !
3 > s e
o /.....J
-
Ay = 21w o
o ANYN M3 J
oo
v B ST o, o
L THE M SN an -
I Dwdeie
v e T oo CRL R it O
H E
g 900N s oy
e - a3l %
AP AL (o op 10}
My e aansy | Tisae | i
LML NI ] i i P
— . N2 wried — 5
Sremesany — A.l.-.\
rot 378 T
v
\ FrN v 1, Jo
P T b soumn oeree 41.\‘ &
87

STOSWAS ONIMYHA

MOLTV

e wr VA D
b B

SR

WA L2 L0 L1 RIOIAR




A1 OT BLIMOWY LRGS0

89009 SYSNVA 'HLYOMNIAYI]
LITLS FINMYHS 003
V1VINOVAINI
NCILINYLSNOD HO4 LON

X

| IV A

serz-gar(oLg)

AT SIDA MY
RINOSSTIN AL SYSNYN

i
i
i
]

! S103LIHO¥Y 1oVx3

£ .ﬁ!.«—.

Y0074 ANNOYD 00 -

o £ I > o
e AT e et

GYTviSY 3904 00 M

P O SO0 Siai 863

g
i

oy e

[=——]
DN GHTUNTLS B 24 B0m
ANZO3TNYTd MIN

YA IN D4 TIRADALET

N WL TI IS C

APV T30 SR A P G0t AL Ca, Lo 0 ot HIes ST E3E a3 A1 O
OTNIDCE AR I D01 WAL ATV O 1TV GLONCOOY B 001 OFF O IEL OB 2l 1

The I¥CAVOR ATEAT NI ¥
WA TG 68 P IO IL7 LIS CA MO N Y D 5 A 33 THA R OB O

TIWTE OF ENTICD EN00™ G TN 10N

T4 D% MUMTSWIVIC) TIAA L3 L SO S TrL B0 A (Y] G0N 1 Tw (3 A0 AWONY 16 Ty 6 THAL TN

L0 N IN0! Wt

TN NPT T T v oY SIS 20N D G4 SO TR o 83 v O LT
| TR RACATY A1 2w w3 18 CINWTTD CN TR T T ¥

WATH 04 CRLVMDET T30 JR0LEM HUBTT TH O
30 204 DAIRICE 0. 1 ke B i

.-.Wé

e P aT L0 T CeSarag DTNy PP G G S8 W 03 SHOIPd MO BRI ¥

‘SALON KVId AA3N TVHEN3O

L. /.

e~
0 o o a]
45 ¢80.
Bz 8t
oo e
4 i
o o | o a
|
A,

F

1

- {/\f\
— ] 5.
H I
= y 1L
%\ﬂz
L~
e ~||
e
et ﬁﬁ!q |
N7
-

WA 0ZCC L1 QIoTsn



85098 SVSNV "HIHOMNIAVET
1334LS FINMYHS 009
VLY INOVANI
NOILONYLSNOD ¥O4 10N

X

WODSLIAUHIEV LIV MM
COTZGRL (BLRI
HNOSEWI "ALID SVENYA

&2Ir T

PR T L I e

TS 30 0 wOCO N J =
rvPEs D £H000 AT S e [N S 1" TS — L
SO - S —

QLoMMICI MOLTIMMIN e e T

RO e OuTI 2 Iunhnu.ﬂ\\ - LA

TR e EAED TN — e

ANIDTINYIdASN | v T . et Vi o

ity e b

WL iy

T var o]

T WOU T

T T
THIVETNIC DRIV 18 T8 Y SMGACLADY LN7LMCUM Th's SIUNIVEL OV S JUOLEH " D4 280

<37 ¥ L HCLYTTY. 3% Tr s CLiwe0m003 Chow  CratnTia vy Tr ot 311 SYORTR- T A RECRO SLINA TVINZQIS3H - 1Y

IR L GoA T WA A M4 AT iy 4314700 D31 ¥WONOOD 7§ —1SNE D LHARINCRI B
YL INT430 W~ a8 01 GV S vamy | ¥ 1% v
LD . 0 MBI PALIOON 3D b4 TNOLIC B s T N L4 17 Oy DAGOLS L¥S i LUtk SY3OY AP
T7¥ 1 CITR B | YIRS 3L SR Gy TIOR T045md DN 7\ CMOTION] STRM T LY 33U E
WAL DD 52 TN AORY T 3180, SO0 ACRI GO0V 50 41 3 TS HILS DA N DEVCE WTtelD
A1 1 b BOLIYIO) Tk |8 £ SONIS T3 3 0ot SIULE THLIN S DMVDWVLE Y RTIR T
NG L LGN 21 o
T e PINTIZ 00 54 T A OV ST VAN TUSA T i e e
TRON 1 B WAUNIO 34 DR WL L‘.g
A S UL LN S R0 NEW e R O e ‘wglll TV AT TIAR TR AN T
| ‘DMINOIL TUTW SO DT CTI0MCH B3 LDV S0 INOOWA DY 90 T3]
FPHTIA 8 NNAR L T4 N0 KV 1Y SIS bV DY TRTNTLIA AL Lhks TRASS O 4L VVIIaD

O DTS T CRrwa Ve 3 TS iy MO8 LIOHOD 504 01, FIRAS AN 1) ) SACONA T O Sed 7 K
EIiriad ChY £37ALE MOOD YN W.eAL DMOTION Tidii S000 Tiv 404 TTIIBOCMOC G, YL ©

SR L3I SV TS UMY Sl ANV UL S TR S0 P E 4 SO PRI

0N 409 I CLOOS TIHUGI ZLT P4 WV TV G DPNGUTAL 7] TAOLYIT) L W0MT-WAOC B0
O BOG LN (P ATV A W OO TIY MO ST MY TMIRAIT A (Y S¥ e M4 04 13 0 3T

BOPEND KR e_INC0 BYI_ e G

A0 TN LY 40 425y L OO e 1IN ML T WU O M14T8 ST LS SRS Doy

wl:l.iofnaa(&!gxqrgrxﬁgu!!u:gg!’.

U LS DA SR A £ YR AN 50 LI U ARAON TOLYIOT TV ¥ Ndkta) W ELIVA OFTeA I £0.57
/i MO Ak 8 G 4 1 SR G B CHEI0 MO ETN W LM DU BT Y 3
Lo Ts3300m Bl 4 M08 Baben LTy Doy uv sre
OPAY BATIA4 TY GUTOAYT OO S DN MBCL CAVONYIS WO L3R <178 ONY NSO CIDWY R IO, W3TY  §

e BZTOLL FLO2%4

)
BN N A It 171 DR LAETIRTNY 1A H1/Cing 0L B MACM TR M RO INT NS0 B0 Y

'S3LON NYd M3N TWH3NID 30%dS oNend - Ly

485628




10T DT RATMLBCMY SN BHIS0) ©

€0-LV

NYTd HOO ONOD3S

8r099 SYSNYX 'HLHOMNIAYH
13341 FINMVHS 009
VLVINOVAINI
NOILONYLSNOD HO4 LON

4

IHNOSSIN AL SYENVY
S1031IHOYY LoVX3

MOTSIDFLHONY I DV T MMM
swzsid lais)

|amsns i o vw

-lele g F] ONOO

s

S~z0

C

Ny
;

L ]
m(umuuvmnnnmmmm:ummm 38 Y1ve-§ BADTN M AN SHLI XA TY
TR (v §310E 5000 OMOTION TIali MOCD = 22

g4

i £l ¥ D
_—

Sris ILE 3TVIS

E—

GITwiE 36 D4 OO0 M3 ==

et L W

ML NI

AOYVAB L T =

DN CHVINLE TUY N0 TR
ONZDITNY1d M3N

AVIWITIN THVINL 38 TIME Y SAMIH0ANDD v W3 AN T STV MY SI4E4 WO IS T SATTRO
LA HOUNTILS8 Baf g C3,vm0u020 G OAON B Tio CHV VOLISTS NSO AR DN
CEIWADNOD ML LN O AT .

i
LI 1 WL MALIOF TUCLL DU WO
TV I GO PR Iher] BIA TS 0 (00 C T MO

13 IO @ 13N JAOY B 313 04 200”3 MO INILND O D35 3 ThAE 5015 CW N
A0 Wi 11330 T 30 v SOALH e o 8 eI 27 15 31 T M w15 S ST T

WO 04 CuAN ™ AN TH WA DT

300 HE1 4 "WWBEO 0L WIaTH AUALNA DNRCTd

e e LT B TN DHSOC AN TIY
30N WM § MOCT Y SROL VAT T

CIMNCTH I AP DNEWT CIIOI] HOS I
N340 $ONT 1¥ CHRMD A ke WYTH VY 5ZR VALY AN BV TV

T 30 303 3 8V #5080 POS. N
2440 Lascu003 THIECOS FNEA VI T8 DINC DiaLind PAIYO0 IDMCd 10t
B WORSAIN O IOV ETNYH WY 00 |17 B LA RAPS NP 114 P S M BCX W DNASTES 31
DOV MO SRS

Fofoe
TAIIICE P TN ST M0k ISR T
O RO O RITA e B3 ML T LV AN L0 D 3 Pl v SRS CECH SeToh
DTG FING OMON0N L WOMAL THORTE 79 10N THes O
IPTAS STMLYS NG SN S oo TIMEINO 3 KOISH NI ¥ ) MiAA (100 0V TS 390 133
T S N S e 30 TP NWATE O. J3IVMDIIC DR 54 JAC10H ONLE Y3 1Y
A0 NSRRI OL g i 1t 4

3 R L LA W 0 o8 SISO L4 LT T

e i £ s 38 T et T P St LR M SF 1 NP ST 34 T

A2 wazsoorIv1 taowion Swives LaTx) OIS i Seivd

X K 24 O DL Wi A
e e e

DY VoM B INTMNOT AL e 5300 TUDNASY LM IGNOION N KL D S0
N CHY SUCTRORAAY (] DA DM WS At h, AT LLL 58 ML 43 00 0 B4 AN RS L

v

‘SILON NYId M3N TVHINZD

wnan

okt EEEER ., L PR |

SLNN TWLINITIE3Y - 1Y

| 30vesDIENd- LY |

T

Wel 6ZE0°LL



P0-LVY o . n__s b
P LI - —"
WY d 4001 QL
e ] arwmnciwoamm == == = S
S — = 1/ - M i 1
NV R 01 TH000 O SN ) — g [N - TS S R
— A =¥y
U W TIAM ey ———T 1 .
T R . | A D R T
—— NN CRWCHVLD Borv E20aivid LCA = —
= T T S—
ANIOITNVId MIN —t FLd it
L= 1t )
PR 1T | i
+ LOCTL ONAOUD’
0 PR e a— Ty | ey | suey
! — TRV TR 3 TR Y RN 0 5w 4 oo ) =
ol Syp e VA TAVAL AN TIr e S o OO o305 iy LA S I ¢ LTS B NS00 SUNN TVILN3QIGIY - 1Y
RVEADD 1Y Gl V. S ol Y LTG5 C1wICNO00 # 8 LA MV 43 S NI 3

WAAL| A b1 A ENCH YT TIVAL { A 1Y 07118 TR B AN EITLS T, T AT ICoras S ST (o |
DI TGS M O WO )
R O DOV THOCT O CRINEY LT U DRGNS D043 MRS 1 3LERR0 TIY WIS OMT AT w

O BV AN AT STLLMONY LBLON TN SHLOMME A48 TR 8] (3] Boba 4 e | i 174156 14 15
nct AR O 34V EVATE Cin3A T IO VHOALO0 MO TIPEE N T MR CHNY SOV NIVE GOV b
Y 3 2D 4 OHONGUA.. Woidi, CIACH Tl 30 LOM TIE OGN
LI7_0 AITR TTYHE SYIRLTS OV SHIYLS SINEALS T 6C JROLS # SNY3A THNIO LM L2937 58NS ONY 1570
T O T4 S AT NS WAL 1 G TS (A VAR 38 TS NPV O) G OIS SPCIL SMEUSHOMISHA T T
MW NI 20 WIIIEINO) CL B0 B 34
O CRADISEC O UCAA O G Duf¥ AH0Y ) LOZL YW AFLOM ENCILYIN TV LY TrtaAL § idd (WA QIOWAVE DNEY
T LT 0w Ot (T30 74 31 TTYHE SAL (TIHETONAO AR 4 SIS0 THaULSHA NNV A S L o )
1N TABFIDTY B4 W CILON TU A _IIYC CivCrevLD T O Uvd
R PLBAIUD TH FIFOINY OCRSL Y O NN INPONY § MO 133434418 (RA NS 100 0ol 1 01 WG

m..., "YErin a0 1 DML X3 01 M
sy VNOICY UG CLNIATUNOTA MO INY £IC0D THVINALY Lk Sv0a000 M 3103 el XA
\ p AN VY S Sy -G DAORI UV, v LT —
rissn T
2OVES DIENd - LY
U004 QYIHLTED -* u. ‘SILON N¥12 M3N .z.mwzwu el

24029 SYSNWM 'HLHOMNIAYI
133H1S 33INMVHS 009

VLY INOVININI
NOLLONHLSNOO HO4 LON

3Tiv
VEL'B)

ASTIY
vEL

4

e OCC0 1L RLOZSA




FEE ATV SIDURTIN W LA G

B+09S SYSNYH ‘HIHOMNIAYI
13341S 3INMVHS 008

4

RINOSEIN ‘ALID SVENWE

SLO3LIHOYY 1oVX3

MU SLT3UHOUEYLOVE MW
S9Zz5aL (oLa)

ot 1 3 s o

VLVINOVAINI
NOLLONYLSNOD ¥O4 LON

B bliorewne =,
mmn"

%

& &llomw - - -

vl )
NOLLVAZ3 HLNOS *
S wamm

& Gt s

e'\ %mh‘u

3 3 RO LY
WA O IO

e

a8 (o

in
NOILVATT3 HIHON =~

8 -Sfnisym e e e e e

545

2i-34 rE
’

NOLLVAST3 1SV3 -

orean ('v'\
NOILVATI3 1S3M

220

CEE i )

%

£a-2n
SNIM 1SV - NOLLVAZT3 1S3M -

25
ouodyaa 48 =

(s)

P 556000 900259

ek
© ANYe Y A be a3 LAY SV U 5 0
T IV WD AOAIOWNOD O AT OIS

KA Uiy
AN Qv 10°CO TRONS T8 CLENT
2141 T AR T T S0 1T I

B “u“'m"’“%%

.

LA oo G0 WOV P AN WD SRR
03 XCE KT $ TV Dt 230 TR

BANOr QLNIOWIID TV CLPER TY Ve §
AL [ R SA S DMLY MR
ACTETL ATKIIN 1 M1 04 CLURN W
EEITOR0T] PASNAT) AT RMOSVR T

OV CIAGA T 58 Thms SNLB APOP M BORALC
CRACKIN M TELLMO T D1 oL

el
IO e § Bl 42 RES VOt
CHIW1a38 58 Tia X0 (94 OHY) Sanes
3 A e

T4 | T DR THY 31 MY A

o
TOBAN] Ter M DN 0D Vi3
!mﬂmmﬂlﬁhwwﬁh
7.10TVHNIL 0 W LAY
AW POUIIE Saere)
m
VHNEL T v

ZALIVO:
Erro i

SILON NOILVAI I TVESNID

oewan
Y DT Oy SAESIID il AT P
3R

B AAd TVe CIEVE T4 oC SNV WO 210D
I O S T

Erteiy :
TS T

T 3 v0_3e ovt Vil KLY, b ¢
LK MO AL T NOTRA THLS TS 1

T O TN AR
SR L0V O OO DAL AORES 38
SR SIWID (R ALife CNZYYD T BADRGS ¥ D

VIR £3. 0 s 29 LY (8 T |1 e S LN
24 1320 Ca A

IR LD 6 HIPR PROTT w8
&
A avmy ranemy
TIOL ¥ LG S0 AN MEd LA SRS SN

“s307, DA, wevTvba 0L

SN P ENCTNE 4 § T TEWI0 Ol

P L BONNYEL UNY L3 AU KOS | W T e
VLT 000 ¥ e O I ad

T 8 10 4k O 9 B D
Pttt ORAGA I TMEBOLOCODNING T

[oar)
L RN M2 T T SO DAL I T O
‘SALCNMOUNM WHINID




CITY OF LEAVENWORTH PLANNING COMMISSION
COMMISSION CHAMBERS, CITY HALL
100 N S* Street, Leavenworth, Kansas 66048

REGULAR SESSION
Monday, October 1, 2018
6:00 PM
CALL TO ORDER:

Commissioners Present Commissioners Absent
Jay Byrne Sherry Hines Whitson
John Karrasch
Claude Wiedower
Linda Bohnsack
Camalla Leonhard City Staff Present
Mike Burke Julie Hurley

Michelle Baragary

Chairman Byrne called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. and noted a quorum was present.

Approval of Minutes: June 4, 2018
Chairman Byrne asked for comments or a motion on the minutes presented for approval: June 4, 2018. Ms.

Leonhard moved to accept the minutes as presented, seconded by Mr. Wiedower. The minutes were approved by
a vote of 6-0.

OLD BUSINESS:

None

NEW BUSINESS:

1. 2018-11 REZ - 600 SHAWNEE AND 621 SENECA STREET

Conduct a public hearing for Case No. 2018-11 REZ — 600 Shawnee and 621 Seneca Street. The
applicant is requesting a rezoning of their property from Central Business District, CDB, to Residential
Mixed Use, RMX. The property, owned by Exact Loft and Gym, LLC, is commonly known as the former
Immaculata High School building and adjacent vacant lot. The building was constructed in 1922 and
was listed on the National Register of Historic Places as part of the Leavenworth Downtown Historic
District in 2002.

Chairman Byrne called for the staff report.

City Planner Julie Hurley stated the applicant is requesting a rezoning of their property from Central Business
District, CDB, to Residential Mixed Use, RMX. The property, owned by Exact Loft and Gym, LLC, is commonly
known as the former Immaculata High School building and adjacent vacant lot. The building was

Leavenworth Planning Commission 1 October 1, 2018



constructed in 1922 and was listed on the National Register of Historic Places as part of the Leavenworth
Downtown Historic District in 2002.

The structure is a two-story, symmetrically massed, red brick building on a sloping lot with the foundation
level fully exposed on the southern elevation. The RMX zoning district is intended to provide for high-
density, multi-family residential dwellings along with a mix of appropriate neighborhood-serving uses.
Commercial uses may be included in some structures, but there is no requirement for each structure to have
non-residential uses included.

This location is a part of the Redevelopment Overlay District, whose purpose is to facilitate the development
of property in the downtown and northeast Leavenworth in accordance with the 2010 Downtown-North
Leavenworth Redevelopment Master plan. In particular, this location is identified as part of the Downtown
Core. The intent of the subarea is to define Leavenworth’s traditional and historic downtown core, with a
diverse mix of retail, office and residential uses. The downtown core should embrace redevelopment
activities that promote diverse uses and activities that complement the established scale and urban form of
the historic downtown. New activities should promote preservation, renovation and adaptive reuse of
historic structures.

The rezoning is being requested in order to repurpose the school building portion of the property into a total
of 38 apartment units (37 1-bedroom units and 1 2-bedroom unit), with the gymnasium portion of the
property to be used as commercial space for a gym/group fitness operation and juice bar, along with other
dividable commercial space. The proposed uses are all allowable within the existing CDB zoning district,
however, residential uses are prohibited within the front half or front 30 feet of space, whichever is greater,
on the first floor. The applicant intends to provide residential units on the entirety of the first floor of the
former school portion of the building.

Total required parking for the project is 108 spaces based on the following breakdown:

1 2-bedroom unit: 2 spaces

37 1-bedroom units: 37 spaces

4,797 sqft commercial space: 16 spaces
12, 886 sqft gym/ recreation: 51 spaces

302 sqft food service: 2 spaces

There are a total of 26 spaces provided on-site, with an additional 35 on-street parking spaces adjacent to
the project along Shawnee Street and North 6™ Street, and 34 spaces in the adjacent city-owned public
parking lot, for a total of 95 spaces. There are 6 other city-owned public parking lots within a 2-block radius,
with numerous on-street parking opportunities. The Development Regulations allow several provisions for a
reduction in the number of required on-site parking spaces, including for properties in mixed-use districts
and registered historic properties. The CBD zoning district has no minimum parking requirement for any use
type allowed within the district, as on-street parking opportunities and city-owned public parking lots are
intended to satisfy any parking needs.

This project also requires review by the Leavenworth Preservation Commission (LPC), as the structure is
listed on the National Register of Historic Places. The Leavenworth Preservation Commission considered the

Leavenworth Planning Commission 2 October 1, 2018



request on August 1, 2108 and voted 5-0 to approve the request for a Major Certificate of Appropriateness
for the project.

The Development Review Committee reviewed the application at their July 26, 2018 meeting. The main
area of discussion focused on required parking. There was some concern about use of the adjacent city-
owned public parking lot, as the lot it typically heavily used by members of the First Christian Church on
Sundays. There was no concern that the proposed uses would result in a higher volume of traffic than the
former high school use located on the property.

CONDITIONS OF DETERMINATION

Whenever the Planning Commission or City Commission takes action on an application for amendment to
these Development Regulations, and such proposed amendment is not a general revision of existing
ordinances, but one which will affect specific property, the Planning Commission and City Commission shall
consider the following factors:

a) The character of the neighborhood;

The subject property is part of Downtown Leavenworth and the Redevelopment Overlay district, with
a variety of uses and building forms. Historic structures such as this are common in the area.

b) The zoning and use of properties nearby;

The properties to the east, south and west are zoned CBD, Central Business District, and the
properties to the north are zoned R1-6, High Density Single Family Residential District.

c) The suitability of the subject property for the uses to which it has been restricted;

The subject property is currently zoned CBD, which allows a variety of uses by-right.

d) The extent to which removal of the restrictions will detrimentally affect nearby property;

The proposed rezoning should have little to no detrimental effect on nearby property. There is a mix
of uses present in the Downtown area, including multi-family. Staff does not anticipate that the
volume of traffic generated by the proposed uses will be significantly higher than previously
generated by the high school use.

e) The length of time the subject property has remained vacant as zoned;

The structure has been unoccupied since June, 2017.

f) The relative gain to economic development, public health, safety and welfare by the reduction of
the value of the landowner’s property as compared to the hardship imposed by such reduction upon
the individual landowner;

The proposed rezoning will have a positive effect upon the economic vitality of Downtown
Leavenworth in terms of bringing more residents to the area, which will potentially increase the
patronage of local businesses, as well as expanded commercial offerings offering an expanded tax
base.

g) The recommendations of permanent or professional staff;

Leavenworth Planning Commission 3 October 1, 2018



Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request.

h) The conformance of the requested change to the adopted or recognized Comprehensive Land Use
Plan being utilized by the city;

The subject area is identified as appropriate for commercial uses in the Comprehensive Plan.
However, the majority of the Downtown area is identified as commercial on the Future Land Use
Map, and there exists already a mix of residential uses in this area. Additionally, this area is part of
the Downtown-North Leavenworth Redevelopment Area Master Plan, which promotes the area as
appropriate for a mix of uses, including residential. Therefore, staff finds the proposed request is not
in conflict with the Comprehensive Plan.

i) Such other factors as may be relevant to a particular proposed amendment. The factors considered
in taking action on any proposed amendment shall be included in the minutes or otherwise be made
part of the written record;

This proposal makes possible the adaptive re-use of a previously vacant historically significant
structure.

REZONING ACTION/OPTIONS:

¢ Recommend approval of the rezoning request from CBD to RMX to the City Commission
¢ Recommend denial of the rezoning request from CBD to RMX to the City Commission
¢ Table the issue for additional information/consideration

Chairman Byrne called for questions from the commissioners about the staff report.

Mr. Karrasch asked what the intent is for only adding parking spaces behind the alley on the property
located at 621 Seneca instead of using the entire lot for parking.

Jon Klocke, architect and representing the owner, responded the site and grading allow for parking on the
south portion of the lot. The property owner does not want to affect the north portion of the lot in case of
future development.

Mr. Karrasch asked how the clients using the gymnasium will be accommodated when it comes to parking.

Mr. Klocke stated the intent is to lease a portion of the parking lot located on the northeast corner. In the
case of large events, on-street parking would be utilized along with neighboring parking lots.

Mr. Karrasch asked about the lease agreement with the City of Leavenworth.

Ms. Hurley stated the applicant has made it known of their desire to lease the parking lot. In speaking with
the City Manager, that request would need to go to the City Commission. Staff is not sure if there is much
desire to lease out the parking lot for private uses. There are a number of public parking lots in the
downtown area. It is staff’s thinking that any commercial users would just parking in the same manner any
other commercial users would; either on-street or another public lot. Walking a block or two is expected in
the downtown area like this.

Mr. Karrasch asked Mr. Klocke if he has visited with the church about how this will be orchestrated for
Sunday morning church. Especially for church members with mobility challenges.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 4 October 1, 2018



Mr. Klocke stated they have not reached out to the church but would be willing to dedicate a portion of that
to the church; say from 9 a.m.to 1 p.m.

Mr. Wiedower asked who the intended market is for the apartments and what is the rent range.

Mr. Klocke stated the marketed clientele for the apartment units are military, young professionals and
potentially college students. He does not know what the rental rate would be.

With no further questions regarding the staff report, Chairman Byrne opened the public hearing.

Reverend John Emmanuel Sowers, 418 Kickapoo #B, approached the board. He is the pastor at First
Christian Church located at 130 N. 6™ Street. Reverend Sowers stated he has concern about the parking; not
only on Sundays but Monday through Friday because of the Jack & Jill Preschool. The preschool opens at
7:00 a.m. Sometimes it is dark at that time so there is concern about teachers not being able to parking
reasonably close to the entrance. Furthermore, if there is an option to lease the city owned parking lot
northeast of the subject property, First Christian Church would like that option offered to them.

Donald Hollman, 1310 Vilas, approached the board asking if the property owner is not going to develop 621
Seneca into parking and they instead put in more housing, what is that going to do with the parking that is
convoluted already. With the lot at 621 Seneca being over 11,000 sqft and a parking stall being between
250 - 300 sqgft, that is a lot of parking that could be utilized.

With no one else wishing to speak, Chairman Byrne closed the public hearing and asked for discussion
among the commissioners.

Ms. Bohnsack stated there are several churches in that area and the streets on Sunday morning are bumper
to bumper already. She believes that when developers provide residential use in a central business district
that they should provide additional parking for the residential uses. Most businesses downtown are
dependent upon street parking for their business. Ms. Bohnsack believes the development of 621 Seneca
into a parking lot would be very beneficial for this use and for the neighborhood.

Mr. Karrasch stated he believes the public parking lot should not be part of the discussion in this case
because the church needs it, other uses in the neighborhood need that parking lot and once the parking lot
becomes an option for the residents of the apartment units, they will dominate it.

Mr. Wiedower stated the parking is a real issue; however, tenants in that location can also be helpful to
small businesses. Believes it great to do something with the building than leaving it vacant. Hopefully there
can be some coordination and communication so it’s a win win for everyone.

Mr. Byrne agrees that hopefully something can be worked out. May the city can get involved. However, he
does not believe that is the issue right now because it is a public parking lot. The fact that the church has
used it for years is great but it does not give the church the right to direct who can or cannot use the public
parking lot. As far as 621 Seneca goes, the owner can do what they want to with that lot. If they choose,
the Planning Commission can say they do not recommend approval because they believe there is a parking
issue. The Planning Commission cannot they do not recommend approval because the property owner is
not using 621 Seneca to make a parking lot.

Mr. Byrnes thinks the parking should be worked out but does not believe it should be something that

impacts the commission’s decision on this particular rezoning. If the Development Regulations state there is
adequate parking for this use the commission should go along with those regulations.

Leavenworth Planning Commission 5 October 1, 2018



Mr. Karrasch believes this developer has done wonderful projects downtown and is behind him with this
concept but believes the developer dropped the ball on this one in thinking about the greater good of the
community and the possibilities they have to be a good neighbor.

Ms. Hurley stated that the commission can, in their motion, attach stipulations. For instance, the board can
make a motion to recommend approval with the condition that an additional x number of parking spaces
would be added on the lot at 621 Seneca.

Mr. Byrne stated if the board is going to make a motion like that, he believes they should table the issue to
give the developer time to work through any parking issues.

Ms. Hurley stated that giving direction to the applicant and staff to work on options for additional parking
and provide a revised proposal for the Planning Commission to consider is also an option the board has.

Ms. Bohnsack asked where the other public parking lots are in this area.

Ms. Hurley stated public parking lots in the general area include the parking lot northeast of the subject
property, parking lot across from City Hall on North 5 Street and Seneca, behind City Hall there are two
separate public parking lots, parking lot on Shawnee between 5% Street and 6 Street, another parking lot
on 6" Street and Cherokee Street, and a parking lot on Cherokee between 4" Street and 5% Street.

Mr. Wiedower asked if someone other than the architect who has more authority was present.
Ms. Hurley stated only the architect was present.

Ms. Hurley strongly suggests the item be tabled to give the applicant time to submit revised proposals for
parking.

With no other questions or discussion from the commissioners, Chairman Byrne called for a motion. Mr.
Karrasch moved to table Case No. 2018-11 REZ to allow the developer time to submit some viable parking
options, seconded by Ms. Bohnsack and approved by a vote of 6-0. No specific date was set to return this
item to the Planning Commission.

2. 2018-16 SUB — WEST GLEN, 2"° PLAT, FINAL PLAT

Consider a request for a 52 lot final plat for the West Glen residential development. The subject
property is owned by JMK Partners, LLC, plat prepared by Atlas Surveyors. The property is currently
vacant and zoned to R1-6, High Density Single Family Residential District. A preliminary plat for the
subject property was approved by the Planning Commission on June 5, 2017, under the name Wolf
Farms. The first final plat for the subdivision was approved by the Planning Commission on
September 11, 2017. This final plat completes the development of the 101 lot single-family
subdivision.

Chairman Byrne called for the staff report.

City Planner Julie Hurley stated the subject property is owned by JMK Partners, LLC, plat prepared by Atlas
Surveyors. The applicant is requesting approval of a 52 lot final plat for the West Glen residential
development. The property is currently vacant and zoned to R1-6, High Density Single Family Residential

Leavenworth Planning Commission 6 October 1, 2018



Development Review Committee Meeting
Thursday, July 26, 2018

Committee members present: City Manager Paul Kramer, Assistant City Manager Taylour Tedder,' City Planner
Julie Hurley, Police Chief Pat Kitchens, Health/Safety Officer Mark Demaranville, Chief Building Inspector Hal
Burdette, Director Public Works Mike McDonald and Administrative Assistant Michelle Baragary

AGENDA ITEM(S):

1. 2534 2™ Avenue - construction of church

Attendees: Ron Suttles (Pastor) and Brett Napier (Engineer)

Schedule for BZA August 20, 2018 for variance request for rear setback, lot coverage, and driveway
separation.

Retaining wall is being removed
Concerns with storm water quality and quantity
> Possibly use bricks with 4-5' gravel underneath it in the parking lot

Church does not have fixed seating; it's open space. Parking will be 1 per 30 sqft of congregation
area.

» Overflow parking onto the street could be an issue

Will need to submit site grading plan

2. 600 Shawnee St — conversion to mixed use building

Attendees: Jon Klocke (architect)

Converting to apartments and commercial space. School portion will be residential apartments; 38
units, 1BR or 1BR and office. Gymnasium will stay as open recreational space. Chapel will a
workout facility. Cafeteria will be commercial space; yoga component and makerspace.

Scheduled for Planning Commission August 6, 2018 for rezoning from CDB to RMX

ADA access for building will be from the north entrance (courtyard area)

Parking

» Parking lot to the north is public parking

> Possibly use 621 Seneca for parking. Even though it’s across the alley, City will consider it
as on-site parking.

Development Review Committee July 26, 2018



>On-stret—./ arking may reduce the required parking b, p to 50% for each space within
500 feet

»Shared parking can be approved to up to 50% as well (signed agreement required)

»Requesting a variance to allow residential units on the first floor maybe a better route to
go versus rezoning. Would not have parking issues staying with the CDB district.

»Other option is for Exact Loft and Gym to buy the city owned parking lot (601 Seneca).

OTHER BUSINESS:

1. 411N 4™ Street (Mary Scott) — installing new parking lot. Must meet setbacks on north side; 2’ from
sidewalk. Installing a sidewalk/ramp from parking lot to front door but will be close to building and not
impact public sidewalk.

Meeting adjourned at 2:13 p.m.

Development Review Committee July 26, 2018



First Then, First Now
Leavenworth Leading the Way

CHARACTER ARea: DownTowN CORE

Aspiration

The downtown core is the ‘Refined Elegance’ that defines Leavenworth’s traditional and historic down-
town core. Downtown vitality results from a diverse mix of ground level retail and upper level office and resi-
dential. The downtown core should embrace redevelopment activities that promote diverse uses and ac-
tivities that complement the established scale and urban form of historic downtown. New activities should
promote preservation, renovation and adaptive reuse of historic and/or contributing structures, new infill
development should be sensitive to the scale, context and form of the existing environment.

The Downtown Core is a diverse and dynamic mixed-use environment that sup-
ports success of the entire downtown area. Residential, employment, govern-
ment, and retail/entertainment uses create robust activity in the core that ben-
efit other areas of downtown. Reinforcement of the distinctive qualities that are
associated with the traditional downtown environment is key to continuing this
support. Redevelopment strategies must be highly sensitive to the existing his-
toric framework. Redevelopment should primarily be accomplished through
infill development of vacant parcels; new structures on surface parking lots; and
preservation, renovation or adaptive re-use of existing structures.

s ;.; }’*%aﬁ.’i "t Y SO

Downtown . North Leavenworth Redevelopment Master Plan

North: Seneca / Miami
East: 4th

South: Cherokee
West: 7th

Approximately 12 SQ Blocks

4!9

ConcepT FRAMEWORK



¥HOMIWVH] LdIDNOD)

City Hall is a key destination anchor
within the Downtown Core.

4.10

First Then, First Now
Leavenworth Leading the Way

The Downtown Core is envisioned to facilitate redevelopment activities in a
more organic approach, with quality investments on a property-by-property
basis. Single property redevelopment can provide innovative and diverse so-
lutions, adding to the organic feel and authenticity of downtown, by preserv-
ing the rhythm of storefronts, and strengthening the interest and appeal of the
downtown environment. Major redevelopment initiatives with substantial par-
cels should not be the only means of community building and investment.

The primary strategy will be to engage with property owners and the devel-
opment community to ensure new initiatives strengthen the existing fabric
through design solutions that respect the historical integrity of the area. Invest-
ments that are sensitive to scale, form and massing of the area, and further the
sense of the traditional, urban downtown framework are priorities.

Much of the Downtown Core is within the Downtown Historic District. Historic
preservation often is a polarizing issue within communities. The determination
of whether a building should be preserved or redeveloped requires a delicate
balance of the value of a building, both physically and economically.

Often, the determination of a buildings value as a significant, historic or contrib-
uting structure requires in-depth, detailed research and analysis. Determining a
building’s value to Downtown should consider the following traits of the build-
ing and development plan:

e understanding of the property owners goals and aspirations;

e the buildings structural and mechanical integrity;

e the buildings qualitative contribution to the community as a whole;
e established criteria of regulatory and incentive mechanisms;

o eligibility requirements; and

* the cost/benefitin regards to preservation and viable economic use.

The master plan advocates preservation of contributing buildings, when feasi-
ble and consistent with the vision for Downtown. These architectural elements
within the urban framework provide much of the character and identity of
Downtown Leavenworth. Redevelopment strategies should support adaptive
re-use of viable structures.

When addressing preservation and redevelopment, the ultimate goal is to re-
tain that character while accommodating activity with economic viability. A
beginning point for the community and property owners may begin with a
simple process of categorizing individual properties. The categorization is not
intended to replace established historic standards, processes and procedures,
but provide a beginning point for those involved to begin a dialogue regarding
when existing buildings should be considered for improvements or redevelop-
ment initiatives and should be addressed on a case-by-case basis.

Downtown . North Leavenworth Redevelopment Master Plan



First Then, First Now
Leavenworth Leading the Way

Historically Significant

To the greatest extent possible, redevelopment initiatives for buildings deter-
mined to be historically significant should be restored to local, state and federal
historical standards. Renovation of historic buildings can often be difficult to
meet all municipal building code requirements, however, the building exterior,
particularly the front facade should strive to retain or be rehabilitated to its tru-
est splendor and architectural vocabulary. In addition, contributing properties
that may be at-risk, structurally or economically, may be considered for targeted
renovation or adaptive re-use. Working in partnership with property owners or
potential investors, the City should advocate for the preservation of historically
significant structures. This may include assistance with identifying potential re-
sources or incentives to make these structures viable and active elements of
downtown.

Architecturally Contributing

Architecturally contributing properties include those that may not necessarily
be historically significant or eligible for historic designation, but in terms of their
character and relationship to historic properties, contribute to the overall image
and character of the Downtown Core. Renovation and adaptive reuse of these
buildings should be done in a manner that is compatible with adjacent build-
ings and buildings along the block, including the scale, form, and relationship
to the streetscape.

Non-Contributing

In the case of buildings that do not express a significant architectural period or
are relatively lacking of contributing qualities, redevelopment may actually be
favored. As with most downtown environments, a variety of building facades
and forms lack context and relationship to the public realm. Although an exist-
ing building may be structurally sound, new investment in its appearance and
urban form should be advocated.

New improvements should be viewed as an opportunity to mitigate perceived
past mistakes and an opportunity to be reinvented in a more context-sensitive
manner through scale, massing, relationship to adjacent buildings, relationship
to the public street, materials, windows, entrances, architectural details, and
other elements that strengthen the downtown fabric.

Downtown . North Leavenworth Redevelopment Master Plan

Preservation and enhancement

of the historic character of the
Downtown Core is a key philosophy
of the master plan.

4.11

e
L 8

CoNcePT FRAMEWORK



AHOMINWVYHSH LdIDNOD)

Right: Infill redevelopment is one of

the key components to reinforcing
the urban and pedestrian-
oriented framework of Downtown
Leavenworth. Infill investments
are envisioned to be ‘authentic’

in that they not necessarily need
to replicate historic architectural
vocabularies, but rather express
context-sensitive solutions that
continue to tell the story of the
timeless evolution Leavenworth’s
urban core. (Concept for illustrative
purposes).

4.12

First Then, First Now
Leavenworth Leading the Way

Infill and New Redevelopment
Infill and redevelopment present opportunities to:

e add density, create new uses, and increase activity in downtown;

e fillin the missing ‘teeth’along a block face and reinforce the urban fab-
ric; and

e create added economic value.

As with improvements to non-contributing structures, infill redevelopment
needs to occur in a manner that is context-sensitive; however, provides oppor-
tunities to create well-designed and innovative architectural solutions within
the core area.

With some minimum criteria to ensure that form, scale and contextual solutions
are pursued, these opportunities can create dynamic, but complementary im-
provements that reinforce the urban environment. Infill can include additions
to existing structures; new structures on vacant lots and; redevelopment of
surface parking lots - either completely or partially. The master plan provides
generalized principles for redevelopment to be utilized as a beginning point for
property owners and investors to pursue urban and contextual sensitive solu-
tions.

=

£ Ik ; £

N i
b R = ik o
¢! i 5 : .
i Sy sl | P !

I

| e D 5 oo il L
g0 81y e
a8 1A 3 et R N e e e e e
e ML BV p |
B 70 bl W
....."_agfif > ( l — : N'i’sj !
2 A o\ o] ° { |
Rrm—- - } & A8 )
.; § § - TR T i 3
ne g — -
"l iy -
£y ; e e
Ly

Downtown . North Leavenworth Redevelopment Master Plan



First Then, First Now
Leavenworth Leading the Way

Downtown Core: Key Elements
The following are key elements for the Downtown Core:

Urban Form and Scale

The Downtown Core is considered the central activity center with the greatest
diversity of uses. It is best served by urban streetscapes and building orienta-
tions which feed activity into the streetscape. The streetscape should be the
most significant public space within the Downtown. New development should
reinforce the existing urban form and scale of downtown, characterized by the
following:

e Minimum of two story structures;

e Active street level uses, primarily retail, entertainment, or services uses
on ground floors and with office or residential on upper stories;

» Building frontages that engage the public sidewalk and provide a con-
sistent street wall along the streetscape (zero setback/build-to lines
with prominent street level windows and frequent building entrances);

e Aregularrhythm of small-scale store fronts that add diversity and visual
interest to the streetscape.

Urban Design Theme

The Downtown Core derives its character from the historic and traditional char-
acter of buildings, and the relationship these buildings have with public spaces.
Redevelopment should promote investments that are sensitive to the historic
environment and embrace new opportunities that are authentic to the times
and bridge Leavenworth’s past to its future, primarily accomplished through:

* Ensuring contributing and viable historic structures remain as part of
the fabric,

e Accommodating new development and architectural solutions that em-
brace existing context, are compatible to the historic scale and massing
existing in downtown, and build on historic architectural precedents in
new applications.

Downtown . North Leavenworth Redevelopment Master Plan

Recent investment of streetscape
amenities along Delaware Street
should be extended throughout

Downtown.

4.13

CoNcerT FRAMEWORK



{HOMIWVHH LdIDNOD)

Recent investment of streetscape
amenities along Delaware Street
should be extended throughout
Downtown.

First Then, First Now
Leavenworth Leading the Way

Parking Strategy

Parking in the Downtown Core should not compromise the urban form and
scale of the traditional downtown.

Maximize on-street parking on all streets. Angled parking is preferred,
and parallel parking should be used where rights-of-way are con-
strained.

Off-Street parking should be limited and located behind the building
forms and screened from the urban public street face, except for mid-
block pedestrian passages to access parking from storefronts.

Public and district parking areas may be created to address any defi-
ciencies and to allow for more concentrated downtown development.
Public or district parking should be located only on the perimeter of
the Downtown Core area. These parking areas should be anchored by
building forms at street intersections or significant green space with
public art. Additional screening elements, such as low masonry walls,
ornamental fencing, and additional landscaping should also be includ-
ed.

Parking structures should be mixed use with ground level shops along
the primary public street.

On-street parking, located directly adjacent to the development can be
credited to the development’s parking requirements.

Projects and Initiatives

4.14

Extend the Delaware Streetscape prototype project throughout the
Downtown Core. Slight modifications may be considered such as ad-
ditional landscaping and tree wells; public art; curb extensions at inter-
sections for traffic calming measures, decreased the width pedestrians
traverse across the street and additional landscape and amenities.

Downtown . North Leavenworth Redevelopment Master Plan



City of Leavenworth Planning Commission

BYLAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS

The following rules and regulations governing the procedures
of the Planning Commission are adopted in accordance with the
planning laws of the State of Kansas.

Article I - Members

1. The membership of the Leavenworth Planning Commission is
determined by Ordinance No. 7078. A majority of the currently duly
appointed Commission shall constitute a quorum.

2. Members shall be appointed by the Mayor with the consent of the
City Commission. Appointments shall be made for three-year terms.
Vacancies shall be filled by appointment for the unexpired term.
Members of the Board shall be residents of the City of Leavenworth
and serve without compensation.

Article II - Officers

1. The Planning Commission shall organize annually at the first
regular meeting after the annual appointment of members but no later
than the September meeting.

2. The Commission shall elect a Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson
from among the appointed members at the annual organization meeting.
The officers shall serve for one year or until replaced.

3. The City Planner shall serve as the Secretary.

4. The Chairperson shall preside at all meetings and public
hearings of the Planning Commission; shall decide all points of order
and procedure; shall certify plans and subdivision plats; and shall
transmit reports and recommendations of the Planning Commission to
the governing body with the assistance of the Secretary. The
Chairperson and the Secretary are required to certify plans and
subdivision plats.

5. The Vice-Chairperson shall assume the duties of the Chairperson
in his absence.

6. The Secretary shall be responsible for keeping the minutes of
the Planning Commission; sending agendas to members of the Planning
Commission; carrying out written correspondence; maintaining the
records of the Commission; and performing such other duties as the



Planning Commission may require.

7. Should a Planning Commission member miss three regular monthly
meetings in any 12 month period, the commission shall determine if
the City Commission should be petitioned to replace that Planning
Commission member.

Article III - Meetings

1. The Planning Commission shall meet monthly on the first Monday
of the month at 6:00 p.m. in the Commission Auditorium, 1lst Floor
of City Hall. When the first Monday falls on a holiday, the meeting
shall be held on the second Monday of the month.

2. Special meetings of the Planning Commission may be called by
the Chairperson or, in his absence, by the Vice-Chairperson. Notice
of special meetings shall be given by the Secretary to the members
of the Commission at least three days prior to such meeting and shall
state the purpose and time of the meeting.

3. All regular and special meetings, hearings and records shall
be open to the public.

4. A majority of the Commission shall constitute a quorum for the
transaction of business. If a quorum is not present at a regular or
special meeting, those present may either adjourn the meeting or hold
the meeting to consider such matters as are on the agenda. No action
shall be taken at such a meeting and the Commission shall continue
official action on any agenda items until a subsequent meeting when
a quorum is present.

5. The order of business at all meetings shall be as follows:

a)call to order
b)determination of quorum
c

approval of minutes

)
)
)
d)old business
e)new business and/or public hearing
f)reports of committees
g) reports of commission members and city staff
h)adjournment
6. Motions shall be restated by the Chairperson before a vote is

taken. The name of the maker and supporter of a motion shall be
recorded.



7. An affirmative vote of the members present (when at least a
quorum) is needed to authorize any official action of the Commission
unless otherwise specified by statute.

8. All members of the Commission, including the Chairperson, shall
have a vote when present unless a person shall disqualify him/herself
from voting on any decision in which there might be a conflict of
interest. In the event of a conflict of interest, a member shall so
state before discussion of the item and shall remove him/herself from
the dais.

9. When procedural and parliamentary rules by the Planning
Commission do not conflict, procedure shall be according to "Robert's

Rules of Order."

Article IV - Committees

The Chairperson may appoint any standing committee deemed
necessary for the review and study of Commission business and any
special committee seeking research and recommendations on special
topics. Any committee may contain up to four members of the
Commission.

Article V - Planning Commission Staff

1. The Planning Commission may employ staff and/or professional
consultants as it may require, subject to approved budgetary
limitations.

2. The staff shall conduct business for the Commission and prepare
reports and agendas for the Commission pursuant to law and procedure.

3. The staff shall act as liaison for the Planning Commission to
the City Commission and other boards/commissions and the general
public.

4. The staff shall prepare an annual budget and annual review of
the zoning ordinance and Comprehensive Plan and make recommendations

for modifications.

5. The staff shall accept other responsibilities as may be directed
by the Planning Commission, the Governing Body, or the City Manager.

Article VI - Records and Reports

1. The Commission shall keep a record of its resolutions,
transactions, findings and determinations.



2. All records of the Planning Commission shall be available for
public review.

3. The Commission shall review each January the comprehensive plan
and zoning ordinance to determine if any portion has become obsolete

and shall make a report to the governing body regarding same.

Article VII - Publicity

1. The Planning Commission shall encourage the public to attend its
regular meetings and shall take positive action to keep 1its
activities before the public by supplying newspapers and other media
with information and by having members and staff appear before civic
groups to discuss the purpose of planning and the work of the Planning
Commission.

Article VIII - Amendments

1. These rules of procedure may be amended by an affirmative vote
by a majority of the Planning Commission members provided such
proposed amendment has been submitted in writing to each member of
the Commission at least three days prior to the meeting at which such
action is to be taken.

Article IX - Rules of Order

Open Public Meetings. All meetings and study sessions shall be
open to the public. A record must be kept of all business transacted.

Public Hearings. The Chairperson may prescribe procedures for
the conduct of public hearings including setting a time limit for
citizen input in order to provide a fair and impartial presentation
of all sides of a request.

Passed and approved this day of , 2019.

Chairperson
ATTEST:

Secretary



